
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019 

WORK SESSION: 5:30 PM – ADMINISTRATOR GOALS & OBJECTIVES 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

Work Session Roll Call 
1. Continued - Town Administrator Goals & Objectives 

Adjournment 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
2. Regular Minutes April 9, 2019 

3.   One Thirty-Three, LLC – dba West Elk Wine & Spirits License Renewal 

Mayor’s Report 

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

Public Works Report 

Police Department Report 

Town Treasurer Report 

Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 

4. Town Clerk Public Records Policy - Discussion 

5. Town Administrator Review – Goals & Objectives 

6. Annexation of County road – Stahl Road County road section of Grand Avenue to the bridge, County 

road sections of Colorado Avenue, Clock Road and Price Road.  

New Business 
      7. Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot 

      8. Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

      9. Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

10. Rural Philanthropy Days – Large Park Event Registration 

11. Friends of the Paradise Theatre - Rural Philanthropy Days Special Event License 

12. Town Administrator Contract Extension 

13. 2019 Optional Coverage Program for Detainee Medical Coverage 

14. Ordinance 2019-TBD Clark Avenue Parking 

15. North Fork Ambulance Association Lease Transfer to North Fork Ambulance Health Services District – 

Discussion  

Committee Reports 

Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

 

Adjournment 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

3



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

4



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Continued Town Administrator Goals & Objectives 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



Ken Knight Evaluation. 

Here is the compilation of all of the performance objectives from the 
evaluation forms. 

1. Evaluate the water system and take all reasonable steps     
necessary to improve the integrity of the system.  

2. Make sure that the town has a growth plan in place.      

3. Hire and train an intern for Space to Create and the     
Comprehensive Plan.  

4. Make Clark Street a one way street with an exit on Minnesota.      

5. Get a grant for a raw water storage tank.      

6. Explore moving Town Hall to provide additional commercial/art     
space.  

7. Implement timely, monthly, financial reports to the board so that     
the board can make more informed decisions.  

8. Develop key position/employee backups so as to not allow the     
town to become totally dependent on one person.  

9. Based on Ken’s self-report and his behavior during meetings,     
being less reactive to certain members of the community would 
be helpful.  

6



10. Improve follow up and monitoring of projects, examples would be   
the warehouses and with the water system.  

11. Increase work session time with the trustees and the public to    
improve dialogue and seek solutions.  

12. Ensure that all information for council meetings gets compiled by   
Friday. 

13. Approach challenges and issues with a collaborative mind-set.    

14. Research and present best practices for water system   
improvements with pros and cons of each option.  

15. Communication skills. Improvements in conflict resolution.    

16. Begin the process to develop a master plan for the Town.    

7



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Work Session Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call  

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

9



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

10



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

11



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

12



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Regular Minutes April 9, 2019 

One Thirty-Three, LLC – dba West Elk Wine & Spirits License Renewal 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

13



14



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

April 09, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

WORK SESSION 5:30 

 

Roll Call 
 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Samira Hart 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

Town Administrator Review - Goals and Objectives 
 Mayor Stewart provided an overview of the plan to review and discuss the sixteen (16) 

goals and objectives identified during the annual Administrator review. No action can be 

taken during a work session. The work session discussion is also included on the regular 

agenda. 

1. Research, evaluate, and present options for water treatment system improvement, to 

include possible addition of storage. 

2. Work with appropriate staff and Town Boards to prepare and present an updated 

Master Plan. 

3. Begin developing a streets and drainage master plan. 

4. Explore right-of-way between Clark Avenue & Minnesota Avenue. 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

REGULAR MEETING 6:30 

 

Roll Call 
 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Samira Hart 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

 

Approval of Agenda 

15



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

 Approval of Agenda 

 Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve the agenda as 

presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

Announcements 
 None 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
 

Barry Smith – Price Road – requested an update regarding the water incident and follow-up 

report.  Administrator Knight explained the Town is awaiting the after-action report which 

we will then publish and schedule a special meeting to discuss the items included. 

  

Consent Agenda 
  

Regular Minutes – March 26, 2019 

  

Curiel LLC dba Rio Bravo Liquor License Renewal 

  

WSCC – Annual River Festival  

Motion made by Trustee Budinger, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve the consent  agenda 

as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

  

Mayor’s Report 
  

Arbor Day 2019 Proclamation 

Mayor Stewart read the Arbor Day Proclamation for April 26, 2019 for the record.  

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

 Administrator Knight reported: 

 

 Out of the office May 27th to June 10th.  

 Rural Philanthropy Days are the week of June 11th - 15th. 

 

Clark Avenue Parking - Notice to Public of Potential Parking Regulation Changes 

Administrator Knight requested Board direction regarding parking on Clark Avenue, 

specifically, direction for staff in drafting of an ordinance limiting parking to the east side of 

Clark Avenue.  

 

Trustee Bear believes the parking should be limited to one side of the street. 

 

Tomas Markle - 2nd Street - What is the width of Clark Avenue and are their other roads in 

16



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Town that may need to be one side parking.  

 

Motion by Trustee Budinger supported by Trustee Bookout to direct staff to prepare an 

ordinance for review, limiting Clark Avenue to one-side parking as discussed. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, 

Trustee Knutson 

  

RFP – Water Engineer for the Study of Adding Raw Water Storage to Lone Cabin Reservoir 

and/or Roeber Reservoir 

RFP – Water Engineer for Study of Water Treatment Capacity and Raw Water Availability 

  

Administrator Knight provided information regarding the combination of multiple items and 

rfp's and submission to DOLA for grant funding. Items to be included: 

 Raw water storage 

 System capacity 

 Raw water availability 

 

  

RPF – Mapping of Water and Sewer System in format that can be added to County GIS 

The RFP will include mapping of the water and sewer system, collection system, manholes, 

drains, etc, which will help to analyze the systems and capacity. The Town may be eligible 

for a DOLA administrative grant to fund the project in part. 

 

Bill Brunner - 2nd Street - Noted the RFP's discussed as presented are not new, simple or 

cheap and believes that until the storage capacity is increased the perception is the Town is 

taking away water for a tap that has already been purchased. Mr. Brunner suggested the 

Board place a moratorium to tap sales.  

 

Christina Patterson - Price Road - Would the engineer be a full-time position or specific to 

the RFP. - Specific to the RFP. 

 

Thomas Markle - 2nd Street - questioned if the criteria of the Town water ordinance is met.   

 

Barry Smith - Price Road - asked for a procedural explanation of how a moratorium would be 

enacted. 

 

Eric Goold - KVNF - Asked how the reservoirs to be investigated would be decided.  

 

Kris Kendall - Minnesota Creek Road - questioned why the Town is only looking at 

reservoirs and not looking in to tank storage.  

 

Public Works Report 

 Public Works Director Loberg reported: 

 Spring cleanup scheduled for May 20 - 24th. Dumpsters at Town Park will be 

available from May 17th - 28th.  

17



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

 Working with Town Clerk on spreadsheet for water usage, production, spilling, and 

selling.  

 Park cleanup is underway, including wood chips and painting. 

 The street sweeper will be running. Be aware of dust. 

 Receiving bids for street and parking lot striping. 

 Completing the tree trimming RFP. 

 Apple Valley irrigation will need repairs where the creek flooded. 

  

Police Department Report 

Chief Ferguson reported: 

 Blotter included in packet. 

 Busy few weeks. 

 Officer Patterson completed advanced SRO training. 

 Officer at training for last two-weeks. 

 Just completed 2 days of training. 

 Multiple DUI's over last two weeks. 

 Heavily enforcing stop sign violations. 

  

Eric Goold - KVNF - any progress regarding tree cut in Apple Valley - none. 

 

Town Treasurer Report 

Treasurer King reported: 

 Reviewed payroll and disbursements. 

 Continue to research purchasing policies to meet state and federal guidelines.  

 May be bringing grant processing and managing of information to the Board for 

review and direction. 

 Finance Director spending considerable time preparing information for the new 

auditing firm. Requesting patience from the Board.  

Disbursements 
 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Hart to approve 

disbursements as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

Unfinished Business 
 Tree Board Vacancy – Appointment 

 John Valentine and Simon Wain supplied letters of interest for the tree board. 

Tamie Meck - Mr. Valentine attended the last meeting and is very impressive and very 

knowledgeable.  

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Hart to appoint Mr. Valentine to 

the Paonia Tree Board. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

 Town Administrator Review – Goals and Objectives 

18



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

 Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to continue to next 

regular meeting, to include a work session prior to the meeting at 5:30pm. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, supported by Trustee Bachran to direct attorney to 

draft an extension for the Administrator contract to June 11th.  Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-

Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee 

Knutson 

 

 Single Use Plastic Bag Ban – DRAFT Ordinance - Discussion 

 Town Attorney Nerlin provided information regarding the request from his office for the 

Board of Trustees to review and provide direction for the draft ordinance regarding 

plastic bag ban. The draft does not include fruit bags, hardware store nut bags, meat, 

produce, and fish bags. It also includes a violations section which was left blank for 

Board direction.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding weight restrictions on cloth bags, difficulties with 

implementations in other municipalities, lead time prior to adoption of the ordinance, 

citizen and commercial support, penalty structure, and single use plastic bag ban 

including special events.  

 

Trustee Hart requested that the Town reach out to business owners for their input. 

 

Open for public comment.  

 

Tom Camp - 4th Street - a study shows bans are not very effective, and a fee seems to be 

more effective. 

 

Melissa Munoz - 5th Street - Thanked the Board for considering the ban, which is just a 

start to address waste in the community. 

 

Adriane Panciera - 4th Street - suggested promoting compostable use bags for dogs as 

well. 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Bachran to refer to 

Government Affairs to work on the ordinance and bring back at next meeting. Voting 

Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

 5-minute recess. 

 

 Lifting of Water State of Emergency 

  

  

19



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Hart to lift the Paonia State of 

Emergency. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

New Business 
 Friends of the Paonia Skatepark 

 Jay Canode was present to discuss a grant opportunity to improve the Town skate-park. A 

minimum goal is $100,000 cost, 25% matching funds to be raised to obtain a GOCO 

grant. Mr. Canode requests Board approval to sponsor the GOCO grant for skate park 

improvements. The skate park receives minimal improvement and maintenance, 

primarily provided by the North Fork Pool Park and Recreation District (NFPPR), who's 

contract expires in the next year.  

 

Mr. Canode included information regarding the eclectic group who utilize the skate-park 

and provided a video of an example of a park within the expected budget.  

 

Administrator Knight added the Town would be the applicant for the grant as the owner 

of the property and suggests the Town negotiate for the NFPPR to continue managing the 

skate park.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the need for older kids’ activities, funding mechanisms, and 

disbursements. 

 

Sarah Shearer - Secretary for the NFPPR - the main issue is that the Town owns the 

property and believes the Town is the better applicant as property owner. Ms. Shearer 

also suggested the Town sponsor Mr. Canode to attend Rural Philanthropy Days.  

 

Esiah Mendoza - 5th Street - said he loves the skate park and would love to see it bigger.  

 

Adriane Panciera - 4th Street - in support of improvement at the skate park. Concerned 

with light pollution and the chain link fence running between the park and the residential 

neighborhood.  

 

Tom Camp - 4th Street - Suggested the definition of managing the skate park be better 

defined in any renewed agreement. 

 

Jeremy Diamond - offers a free skate class on Friday's at the skate park. Suggested 

multiple ideas to address many ideas and concerns for an expanded skate park.  

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Hart for the Town to 

partner with Friends of Paonia Skate Park for a grant application for the skate park. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

20



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Hart to continue item 19 to 

next Town meeting. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

 WSCC – Letter of Support – CORE-Act  

Patrick Dooling - Executive Director of the WSCC - was present to discuss the agenda 

item.  Mr. Dooling requests the Board submit a letter of support for the CORE Act.  

 

Mr. Dooling provided an overview of the CORE Act by reading the submitted letter 

included in the packet. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding mineral extraction, restrictions for motorized vehicles, 

hunting, impacts on communities. 

 

Trustee Bear stated he does not believe the Town should participate in issues outside of 

the community and does not believe Trustee members who members of the WSCC 

should vote. 

 

Trustee Knutson disclosed his membership on the WSCC and added he has no conflict. 

 

Trustee Knutson - called the question - motion failed. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding coal mining methane capture, hunters, and revenues.  

 

Monica Foguth - believes the impact will be felt in our community when it directly 

surrounds the community. 

 

Kris Kendall does not believe the Town should speak on behalf of the entire community 

and that community members should do what they think is right. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to instruct the 

Town Administrator to write letter of support to Senators Bennett and Gardner and 

Representatives Tipton and Neguse.  Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson Voting Nay: Trustee Bear, Abstain: Trustee 

Budinger  

  

 Annexation of County Road – Stahl Road and County road section of Grand Avenue to 

the bridge 

 Administrator Knight provided information about previous discussions regarding a 

request to Delta County to annex sections of Stahl Road and Grand Avenue and provided 

information regarding the desire to include sections of Colorado Avenue, Price Road, and 

Clock Road.  

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson to extend the meeting for 30 

minutes. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson 

21



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 8 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Hart to continue 

discussion and add additional sections of roads to agenda for next meeting. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson  

 

Trustee Knutson requested information be included regarding maintenance of the 

additional roads. 

 

Barry Smith – Price Road - are there any implications to the homeowners if Town took 

over the roads. 

  

Tamie Meck – DCI - questioned why the extension had not been addressed previously. 

 

 Sewer Tap Purchase - 470 Stahl Road 

 Mr. Stahl requests a sewer tap for 470 Stahl Road. A pre-annexation agreement is in 

place. Administrator Knight recommends the Board grant the sewer tap sale at the in-

town rate. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Knutson to approve the request and to sell 

the tap to Mr. Stahl at out-of-town rate.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding rates given in the past in the area under discussion. 

 

Motion to amend main motion by Trustee Knutson seconded by Trustee Hart selling tap 

at in-town rate. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson Voting Nay: Trustee Bear 

 

Town Clerk Ferguson confirmed the in-town rate is included in the County Highway 133 

IGA. 

 

 Minor Subdivision – Huntley Subdivision – Recommendation to Board of County 

Commissioners 

  

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Budinger to extend 

meeting to 10:30. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee Knutson  

 

The property in the Town and County planning area has requested to subdivide. The 

Highway 133 Planning Agreement states the Town will participate in the planning area. 

The approval process has been delegated to the Town.  

Administrator Knight has reviewed - consistent with all codes and requirements. Will 

require 1 sewer tap and 1 water tap. Administrator Knight recommends sale at in-town 

rates and approval.  According to the Highway 133 agreement sewer taps are to be sold at 

in-town rates and water taps at a 25% discount.  

 

22



 

  

APRIL 09, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 9 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson seconded by Trustee Hart to recommend BOCC to approve 

the minor subdivision and stay consistent with policy for tap rate sales. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson  

 

Minor Subdivision Approval – Rio Grande 

 Barger minor subdivision request - Administrator Knight provided an overview of the 

minor subdivision request. There is no in-Town moratorium on tap sales. Administrator 

Knight made the recommendation for approval of the minor subdivision.  

  

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee 

Hart, Trustee Knutson 

 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Nothing to report. 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Nothing to report. 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Nothing to report. 

 Meeting on the 16th at 6pm. 

Tree Board 

Nothing to report. 

Tree Board 

Nothing to report. 

Adjournment 10:06PM 
  

Motion made by Trustee Hart, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-

Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Hart, Trustee 

Knutson 

 
  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

23



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

24



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

26



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

27



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   04/03/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:41:11 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
22:16:05 DUI

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
2ND St & DORRIS AVE, Paonia, PPD PPD CAA

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   04/04/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:24:22 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
18:45:23 Information

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVENUE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   04/05/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
22:29:42 Traffic Stop GRAND AVENUE @ 2ND STREET, Paonia,

CO
PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   04/06/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:36:32 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
10:50:52 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
13:49:07 VIN INSPECTION

Address
OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

16:11:43 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD VW
16:41:26 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
20:29:38 Traffic Stop PPD PPD VW

20:56:33 FIRE

BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
2ND STREET @ ORCHARD AVENUE, Paonia, 
CO
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   04/07/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
09:36:32 WELFARE CHECK MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
18:45:43 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD UTL
21:22:02 Traffic Stop

ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO 
ONARGA AVENUE @ 2ND STREET, Paonia, 
CO

PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

28



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   04/08/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:05:46 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
20:05:48 Miscellaneous PPD PPD

21:11:31 Medical/transfe

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PARADISE THEATRE, 
Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   04/09/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
08:05:11 RESTR/PROT ORDR PPD PPD CAA

17:59:06 Disturbance PPD PPD
21:59:16 CIVIL PROBLEM

2ND ST; DEPENDABLE LUMBER, 
Paonia, CO
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO 
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   04/12/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:28:05 MARIJUANA PPD PPD UTL

12:54:21 Information PPD DIST3

14:21:43 ERROR PPD PPD

14:27:03 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD

17:14:50 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
19:54:11 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
19:58:05 SUSPICIOUS

Address
GRAND AVE; ibo address Country Cache, 
Paonia, CO
SAMUEL WADE RD; LIBRARY PAONIA, 
Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; FIRST STATE BANK, Paonia, 
CO
MEADOWBROOK BLVD; PAONIA CARE 
AND REHABILITATION, Paonia, CO 
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
Box Elder Avenue, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 7

Date Occurred:   04/13/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
18:50:09 Traffic Stop GRAND AVENUE @ 3RD STREET, Paonia,

CO
PPD PPD CIT

23:01:41 Traffic Stop 3RD STREET @ GRAND AVENUE, Paonia,
CO

PPD DIST3 CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   04/14/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:26:57 DUI

Address
SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

29



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 04/01/19` and `00:00:01 04/16/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   04/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:30:05 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD

12:16:17 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
16:03:50 Certified Vin PPD PPD
16:13:10 Juvenile Prob PPD PPD UNF
16:17:25 Certified Vin

Address
4TH ST; PAONIA TOWN PARK, Paonia, CO

GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 5

Total reported: 36

VW=2
CIT=4
CAA=3
UNF=1
UTL=2

30



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

31



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Town Clerk Public Records Policy - Discussion 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

41



1 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

Town of Paonia - Public Records Policy 

 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia that all public records shall be 

open for inspection by any person at reasonable times, except as provided by the Public 

Records Act or by other laws. This policy is intended to provide a guideline for employees 

handling public records requests and will be deemed modified by additional or new language 

added to the Colorado Public Records Act C.R.S. 24-72-201 et seq. 

 

Though "all public records are to be open for inspection by any person at reasonable times," 

procedures for such disclosure can be subject to rules and regulations made by the official 

custodian or the custodian.  

 

Now henceforth it shall be the policy of the Paonia Town Clerk as follows: 

 

These rules and regulations are authorized, if they are reasonably necessary for the 

protection of such records and for the prevention of unnecessary interference with the 

regular discharge of the duties of the custodian or his/her office/department. Such rules and 

regulations cannot change the Act; for example, such rules and regulations cannot limit who 

is entitled to records or limit what records are open for inspection. This Policy is intended as 

a general guideline to assist employees in handling public records requests. However, 

depending upon the circumstances of a request, the Town reserves the right to allow a 

custodian to establish specific rules and regulations necessary for the protection of such 

records and for the prevention of unnecessary interference with the regular discharge of the 

duties of the custodian or his/her office/department. This Policy is subject to interpretation 

by the Town Attorney’s Office and exceptions may be made in individual cases at the 

discretion of the Town Attorney’s Office. 

 

A. Definitions 

 

The definitions found in 24-72-202. C.R.S., as amended from time to time, shall apply unless 

the context clearly requires a different meaning. Two definitions of particular importance are 

listed below: 

 

1) Public Records: All writings made, maintained, or kept by . . . any political 

subdivision... for use in the exercise of functions required or authorized by law... or 

involving receipt or expenditure of public funds (C.R.S. 24-72-202(6)). Criminal 

justice records are not included by the provisions of Part 2, but rather are covered by 

Part 3 of the Act. 

 

2) Writings: All books, papers, maps, photographs, cards, tapes, recordings, or other 

documentary materials, regardless of physical form or characteristics. Writing 

includes digitally stored data, including without limitation e-mail messages, but does 

not include computer software (C.R.S. 24-72-202(7)). 

 

B. Procedure 

 

1) The Town has determined that the use of an official Request Form to be used by 

42



2 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

citizens is necessary for the efficient handling of such public records requests. The 

Public Records Request Form  (Attachment A) should be given to any individual who 

makes a request that is not on the form, or the individual should be directed to 

www.townofpaonia.com  or to the Paonia Town Clerk to receive a Public Records Request 

Form. The citizen should be told that Town Policy requires that requests be made on this form 

and the employee should make every effort to ensure that the citizen is given enough 

information so that they can access the form without delay. Once a request is received on the 

official Town Public Records Request Form, a copy should be transmitted to the Town 

Attorney’s Office immediately. The Town has a limited amount of time within which to 

respond to Public Records requests and employees receiving such requests should be familiar 

with these statutory deadlines. See Time for Accessing Public Records in this Policy for more 

information. 

 

2) The Town Clerk is the official custodian of all records centrally maintained by the Town. 

Department Heads are the official custodians of all records maintained within their departments. 

The Town Clerk is the official custodian of e-mails. It is the responsibility of each Department 

Head to become familiar with and to educate his/her affected employees about the standards and 

requirements of this policy. 

 

Elected Officials may develop their own policies and procedure regarding public 

records in their custody; however, to the extent that the Town has custody of any 

public records of an Elected Official the Town shall, in consultation with the Elected 

Official, meet any requirement of the Open Records Act as it may apply to documents 

in the Town’s possession. 

 

If the public records requested are not in the custody or control of the person to whom 

application is made, such person shall “forthwith” notify the applicant of this fact, in 

writing if requested by the applicant. In such notification, the person shall state in 

detail to the best of the person’s knowledge and belief the reason for the absence of 

the records from the person’s custody or control, the location of the records, and what 

person then has custody or control of the records. C.R.S. 24-72-203(2)(a) 

 

C. Fees 

 

1) Request(s) for records which fit the following criteria may, in the judgment of the 

official custodian, be provided free of charge: 

 

a) Documents which do not exceed ten pages, and which are retrievable within a 

one-hour period of the request(s). 

 

b) Agenda materials which have been prepared in advance and which are in support 

of items scheduled for consideration by the Board of Trustees at a future date, 

unless the request(s) exceeds twenty-five pages of material. 

 

c) Record(s) which are normally produced for public information, such as the current 

year budget document, brochures on Town services, or procedures, etc. 

 

2) In all cases where a person has the right to inspect any public record, s/he may request 

43



3 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

Electronic copies, printouts or photographs of such record. 

a) The fee shall be established by the Board of Trustees within their official fees 

schedule which may be amended from time-to-time.  Fees shall be within the 

criteria set forth by the State of Colorado. Actual costs shall include staff time. 

Any fees charged in this policy shall include the cost of redacting documents to 

excise privileged material and legal review within the limits provided by law. 

Fees may be waived or reduced with prior approval of the Board of Trustees. 

b) Each department may also charge a reasonable hourly fee for the manipulation of 

data in order to generate a record in a form not used by Town, if the Town elects 

to provide information in this manner. 

c) An initial deposit of up to 50% of the reasonable estimated costs may be 

required in advance of fulfillment of the request. 

d) All payments for copies and staff time etc. must be received in advance of 

releasing the requested records. 

e) Departments may charge for time spent responding to large requests, and/or 

multiple requests (which shall include, but not be limited to requests on multiple 

request forms or on multiple pages), including without limitation, compiling 

information, request(s) that require the searching of voluminous files for specific 

information, manipulation of data (including manipulating data in order to 

generate a record in a form not used by the Town, although such manipulation is 

not required by CORA), or redacting documents to excise confidential 

information. The charge shall be established by the Board of Trustees within 

their official fees schedule which may be amended from time-to-time.  Fees shall 

be within the criteria set forth by the State of Colorado. All time spent on such 

tasks shall be charged to the requesting party. 

 

D. Time for accessing Public Records 

 

1) Time for inspection of records – Three Working Days 

 

If the requested records are in active use or are in storage and, therefore, are not 

available right away, this fact shall be communicated to the applicant "forthwith" in 

writing if requested. The custodian shall set a date and hour within three working 

days when the records will be available for inspection. 

 

2) Extension of time to 10 working days 

 

The period of providing requested documents for review may be extended up to ten 

working days if the custodian determines that one of the following conditions 

exists, and, states such condition in writing to the requestor within the first three 

days that the request was received: 

 

a) A broadly stated request is made that encompasses all or substantially all of a 

large category of records and the request is without sufficient specificity to allow 

the custodian reasonably to prepare or gather the records within the three-day 

period; or 

b) A broadly stated request is made that encompasses all or substantially all of a 

44



4 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

large category of records and the agency is unable to prepare or gather the records 

within the three-day period because: 

 

i) The agency needs to devote all or substantially all of its resources to meeting 

an impending deadline or period of peak demand that is either unique or 

not predicted to recur more frequently than once a month; or 

ii) A request involves such a large volume of records that the custodian cannot 

reasonably prepare or gather records within the three-day period without 

substantially interfering with the custodian’s obligation to perform his or 

her other public service responsibilities. 

 

c) In no event can extenuating circumstances apply to a request that relates to a 

single, specifically identified document. 

d) If the request is too broad, speculative or voluminous to prepare in ten days the 

Town may request relief from the court, including attorney’s fees, as provided 

by law. 

 

3) When Time Period for Response Begins: 

 

The time period for response does not begin to run until the Town receives the 

request on the Town’s official Public Records Request form. If the form is sent by: 

 

a) E-mail, it is deemed received when it is viewed by the recipient. 

b) U.S. Mail, it is deemed received when its seal is broken. 

c) Fax, it is deemed received on the following business day. 

d) In-person, it is deemed received on the following business day. 

 

E. Reviewing Records 

 

The custodian of the records may set the location where the records may be viewed by the 

requestor. In no event may a requester remove documents or add documents to those 

provided for review. The requestor shall not bring and shall not use photocopiers, fax 

machines or any other copy, scanning or reproduction device to copy or photograph Town 

records. Upon completion of the review, the requestor must mark the pages s/he wishes to 

have copied with adhesive tabs. Copies will be made at a later time, depending upon 

volume. The requestor will be notified when the copies are available for pick-up. 

 

If the custodian has the capability to make reproduction she/he shall do so at the rates set in 

the section entitled FEES, above. If the custodian does not have the facilities for making 

copies, printouts, or photographs of the records, the custodian may make arrangements for 

the services to be rendered at another facility. If other facilities are necessary, the person 

desiring a copy, printout or photograph of the record shall pay the cost of providing them. In 

no event shall the records leave the custody and possession of a Town employee assigned by 

the custodian of the record during this process (other than providing the items to the third-

party facility for reproduction.) The Town is under no obligation to allow citizens access to 

Town computers nor is the Town obligated to provide records in electronic format. 

 

45



5 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

 

 
 

F. Denial of Inspection of Records 

 

1) Denial of inspection must be specific and can only be based on reasons provided in 

the Public Records Act. The Act provides that documents may be withheld from 

disclosure: 

 

a) If inspection would be contrary to any state statute. 

b) If inspection would be contrary to federal statute or regulation. 

c) If inspection is prohibited by a rule of the Supreme Court or by order of any court. 

 
 

2) Denial is permitted in the following situations, if disclosure would be contrary to the 

public interest; but if such records are given to one news agency, they shall be 

available to all news agencies: 

 

a) Any records of the investigation conducted by any sheriff, prosecuting attorney, 

or police department, any records of intelligence information or security 

procedures of any sheriff, prosecuting attorney, or police department or any 

investigatory files compiled for any other law enforcement purpose. 

b) Test related data listed in C.R.S. 24-72-204(2)(a)(II). 

c) Details of bona fide research projects of state institutions. 

d) Contents of real estate appraisals relative to acquisition (not sale) of property for 

public use until title passes to the Town. 

e) Market analysis data generated by the Department of Transportation’s bid analysis 

and management system for the confidential use of the department for awarding 

contracts or for the purchase of goods or services and any documents prepared for 

the bid analysis and management system; 

f) Records and information relating to the identification of persons filed with, 

maintained by or prepared by the Department of Revenue pursuant to 42-2-121 

C.R.S. 

 

3) Inspection of the following shall be denied, unless otherwise provided by law or 

unless requested by the person in interest: 

 

a) Medical, mental health, sociological, or scholastic achievement data on 

individuals. 

b) Personnel files, except for application and performance ratings. 

c) Letters of reference (which are not disclosable to the person in interest, if they 

concern employment, licensing, or issuance of permits). 

d) Trade secrets, privileged information, and confidential commercial, geological, or 

geophysical data furnished by or obtained from any person. 

e) Certain material contributed to libraries or museums. 

f) Addresses and phone numbers of school children. 

g) Library records identifying users, as prohibited by C.R.S. 24-90-119. 

h) Home addresses, telephone numbers and financial information of Town employees. 

46



6 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

i) In addition to the above described documents, the Act provides specific and 

detailed circumstances for the denial of, or limited release, of records related to: 

 

i) sexual harassment complaints and investigations, and, 

ii) applicants for an executive position at the Town. 

iii) Records protected by common law privileges such as the governmental 

privilege, the deliberative process privilege, work product privilege, or 

attorney –client privilege. If a record is withheld pursuant to the 

deliberative process privilege, the custodian shall provide the applicant 

with a sworn statement specifically describing each document withheld, 

explaining why each document is privileged and why disclosure would 

cause substantial injury to the public interest. 

iv) The constitutional right of privacy may, in very limited circumstances, be a 

basis for resisting disclosure, particularly for the person in interest. 

 

4) Denial on Basis That Release Would do Substantial Injury to the Public Interest 

 

a) The official custodian may petition the District Court for an order restricting 

disclosure of records otherwise subject to inspection, if disclosure would do 

substantial injury to the public interest (C.R.S. 24-72-204(6)). 

b) If inspection is denied, the applicant may request a written statement of the 

grounds of denial and that statement shall cite the law or regulation which is the 

basis for denial (C.R.S. 24-72-204(4)). 

c) Even records which must be kept confidential are subject to subpoena, discovery 

requests, etc., but such requests can be resisted under the balancing tests set up in 

Martinelli vs. District Court 612 P.2d 1083 (1980). 

47



Town of Paonia 
Colorado Open Records Act 

Public Records Request Form 
 

All requested information shall be charged at 35¢ per page and will be available 
three (3) business days after the submitted written request is received unless 
otherwise notified. 
 
Should the request be substantial in time or volume (more than 25 pages) or 
involve an archive search, an hourly research fee of $25.00 per hour shall be 
charged in 30-minute increments. 
 
Copies of Town Board minutes are available seven (7) business days after 
approval by Town Board. 
 
To facilitate the search, please be as specific as possible in describing the 
requested document(s). 
 
Number 

of 
Copies 

Document Name or Detailed Description 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
Name:        Date:     
 

Address:       Telephone:     
 
In Office___ Hard Copy___ PDF___ E-mail Address: _________________ 
 

C.R.S. 24-72-201 to 24-72-309 

Received: __________ 

 

Deadline: __________ 

 

Fee(s): ____________ 

 

Fulfilled: __________ 

 

48



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Review – Goals & Objectives 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

49



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 19, 2019 
 

 

Annexation of County road – Stahl Road County road section of Grand 

Avenue to the bridge, County road sections of Colorado Avenue, Clock 

Road and Price Road.  

Summary:   

Staff requests Board of Trustees permit the Town Administrator, on their behalf, to request the 

Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) approve the annexation of county roads as listed.  

 

Notes: 

 

Public Works Department have requested information from the County regarding costs to 

maintain the additional stretch of road. We have not heard back with the data yet.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

50



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot 

Summary:   
Mr. Gruenefeldt requests a variance be granted for the non-conforming lot located at 120 North Fork 
Avenue.  Mr. Gruenefeldt wishes to build a home on the lot, replacing a mobile home removed.  The 
variance is required because more than 12 months have passed since the non-conforming mobile 
home was removed.   
 

Staff:  Mr. Gruenefeldt would have been able to replace the mobile home if he had acted within 12 
months.  Removing old out-of-date mobile homes with a site built home approves the appearance 
and character of the Town.  Without a variance the lot is now undevelopable.  However, staff believes 
that variances should be issued only in extreme and unusual circumstances.  The Planning Board 
recommends approval.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

April 10, 2019 
 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, April 10, 2019, was called 

to order at 5:58 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Chair Barbara Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Supported by Commissioner Hunter to approve the agenda. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – March 06, 2019 

 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve minutes with corrections. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot  
 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Mike Gruenefeldt’s variance of a 

non-conforming lot.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the staff notes. Mr. Gruenefeldt did not meet the (12) twelve-

month time frame to replace the mobilome he removed.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt stated the he bought the lot with a 1982 (14) fourteen feet wide and (70) seventy 

feet long mobile home in June of 2015.  

 

Administrator Knight read municipal code sec 16-13-10 objectives of non-conforming lot to the 

planning committee. 

  

 Points Informed to Committee: 

● Lot is too small to build. 

● 12 Month time frame to replace mobile home was not met. 

 

Discussion ensued that the new build would be on the envelope of the old building. 

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated the new build he is considering building at 120 North Fork Ave 

would be (1) one story with a loft structure that would be (650) six hundred fifty square feet. 

81



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the Union Pacific Railroad right away. Mr. Gruenefeldt 

communicated that (50) fifty feet from the center of the railroad tracks is considered railroad 

right-of-away. 

 

Discussion ensued on plan B be used only if plan A didn’t get approved by the planning board.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated that plan B would be to merge both of his lots 116 North Fork 

Ave and 120 North Fork Ave. 

 

Discussion points regarding combining both parcels: 

 Requires a variance to merge lots 

  Requires to Re – Zone to R-3 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Ms. Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Gruenefeldt’s variance application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes regarding Jeff Skeels non-conforming (8) eight-foot fence 

along with municipal code sec 18-19-20 Swimming pools, hot tubs and Jacuzzis. 

 

Discussion ensued about the definition of the art wall as a fence inside of the perimeter, adjacent 

to the fence.  

 

Discussion point: 

 Art wall is in line with the house, has ability to have a taller structurer  

 Code is conflicting with the height of the art wall 

 Moving art wall back will is it legal and appropriate with the code 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Skeels variance application. Motion carried unanimously  

 

Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes, with no issues to report.  

 

Concerns regarding traffic and signage, Ms. Bachran communicated only the normal traffic flow 

and no signage will be placed out side of residence.  

 

Motion by Mr. Bear supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of Ms. Bachrans special use permit application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 6:55 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

 

 

 

 

83



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

Summary:   
Mr. Skeels requests a variance for a section of fence measuring 8ft. Municipal Code only allows for 6ft 
in the property zone..   
 

Staff:  A fence height of 8’ is not normally allowed within a residential zone.  Staff believes that 
variances should be issued only in extreme and unusual circumstances.  The Board of Trustees should 
give careful consideration as to whether or not this request rises to those circumstances.  The 
Planning Board recommends approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

April 10, 2019 
 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, April 10, 2019, was called 

to order at 5:58 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Chair Barbara Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Supported by Commissioner Hunter to approve the agenda. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – March 06, 2019 

 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve minutes with corrections. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot  
 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Mike Gruenefeldt’s variance of a 

non-conforming lot.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the staff notes. Mr. Gruenefeldt did not meet the (12) twelve-

month time frame to replace the mobilome he removed.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt stated the he bought the lot with a 1982 (14) fourteen feet wide and (70) seventy 

feet long mobile home in June of 2015.  

 

Administrator Knight read municipal code sec 16-13-10 objectives of non-conforming lot to the 

planning committee. 

  

 Points Informed to Committee: 

● Lot is too small to build. 

● 12 Month time frame to replace mobile home was not met. 

 

Discussion ensued that the new build would be on the envelope of the old building. 

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated the new build he is considering building at 120 North Fork Ave 

would be (1) one story with a loft structure that would be (650) six hundred fifty square feet. 

95



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the Union Pacific Railroad right away. Mr. Gruenefeldt 

communicated that (50) fifty feet from the center of the railroad tracks is considered railroad 

right-of-away. 

 

Discussion ensued on plan B be used only if plan A didn’t get approved by the planning board.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated that plan B would be to merge both of his lots 116 North Fork 

Ave and 120 North Fork Ave. 

 

Discussion points regarding combining both parcels: 

 Requires a variance to merge lots 

  Requires to Re – Zone to R-3 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Ms. Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Gruenefeldt’s variance application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes regarding Jeff Skeels non-conforming (8) eight-foot fence 

along with municipal code sec 18-19-20 Swimming pools, hot tubs and Jacuzzis. 

 

Discussion ensued about the definition of the art wall as a fence inside of the perimeter, adjacent 

to the fence.  

 

Discussion point: 

 Art wall is in line with the house, has ability to have a taller structurer  

 Code is conflicting with the height of the art wall 

 Moving art wall back will is it legal and appropriate with the code 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Skeels variance application. Motion carried unanimously  

 

Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes, with no issues to report.  

 

Concerns regarding traffic and signage, Ms. Bachran communicated only the normal traffic flow 

and no signage will be placed out side of residence.  

 

Motion by Mr. Bear supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of Ms. Bachrans special use permit application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 6:55 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

 

 

 

 

97



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

Agenda Item 

 

Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

Summary:   
Mary Bachran requests permission to continue her sewing business within her home. 
 

Staff does not have any issues for review with this application.   The Planning Board recommends 
approval.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

April 10, 2019 
 

 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission held Wednesday, April 10, 2019, was called 

to order at 5:58 PM by Chairperson Barbara Heck, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll Call: 

Commission members present were as follows: 

 

Chair Barbara Heck 

Commissioner Lucy Hunter 

Commissioner Monica Foguth 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Trustee William Bear 

 

Town Staff present were as follows: 

 

Administrator Ken Knight 

Deputy Clerk Amanda Mojarro 

 

A quorum was present, and Chairperson Barb Heck proceeded with the meeting. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Supported by Commissioner Hunter to approve the agenda. 

 

Unfinished Business 
 

Minutes – March 06, 2019 

 

Motion made by Mayor Stewart, Seconded by Trustee Bear to approve minutes with corrections. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing: 120 North Fork Avenue – Non-Conforming Lot  
 

Chairperson Barbara Heck opened the meeting to discuss, Mr. Mike Gruenefeldt’s variance of a 

non-conforming lot.  

 

Administrator Knight read off the staff notes. Mr. Gruenefeldt did not meet the (12) twelve-

month time frame to replace the mobilome he removed.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt stated the he bought the lot with a 1982 (14) fourteen feet wide and (70) seventy 

feet long mobile home in June of 2015.  

 

Administrator Knight read municipal code sec 16-13-10 objectives of non-conforming lot to the 

planning committee. 

  

 Points Informed to Committee: 

● Lot is too small to build. 

● 12 Month time frame to replace mobile home was not met. 

 

Discussion ensued that the new build would be on the envelope of the old building. 

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated the new build he is considering building at 120 North Fork Ave 

would be (1) one story with a loft structure that would be (650) six hundred fifty square feet. 

105



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the Union Pacific Railroad right away. Mr. Gruenefeldt 

communicated that (50) fifty feet from the center of the railroad tracks is considered railroad 

right-of-away. 

 

Discussion ensued on plan B be used only if plan A didn’t get approved by the planning board.  

 

Mr. Gruenefeldt communicated that plan B would be to merge both of his lots 116 North Fork 

Ave and 120 North Fork Ave. 

 

Discussion points regarding combining both parcels: 

 Requires a variance to merge lots 

  Requires to Re – Zone to R-3 

 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Ms. Hunter to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Gruenefeldt’s variance application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Public Hearing: 332 Onarga Avenue – Non-Conforming Fence 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes regarding Jeff Skeels non-conforming (8) eight-foot fence 

along with municipal code sec 18-19-20 Swimming pools, hot tubs and Jacuzzis. 

 

Discussion ensued about the definition of the art wall as a fence inside of the perimeter, adjacent 

to the fence.  

 

Discussion point: 

 Art wall is in line with the house, has ability to have a taller structurer  

 Code is conflicting with the height of the art wall 

 Moving art wall back will is it legal and appropriate with the code 

 

Motion by Ms. Hunter supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees 

approval of Mr. Skeels variance application. Motion carried unanimously  

 

Public Hearing: 511 Box Elder Avenue – Home Occupancy 

 

Administrator Knight read staff notes, with no issues to report.  

 

Concerns regarding traffic and signage, Ms. Bachran communicated only the normal traffic flow 

and no signage will be placed out side of residence.  

 

Motion by Mr. Bear supported by Mr. Stewart to recommend to the Board of Trustees approval 

of Ms. Bachrans special use permit application. Motion carried unanimously 

 

Adjournment 
 

Motion by Mr. Stewart supported by Mr. Bear to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Ms. Heck at 6:55 pm 

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                         Barbara Heck, Chairperson  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106



 

 
  

MARCH 06, 2019 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 3 

 

 

 

 

 

107



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Rural Philanthropy Days – Large Park Event Registration 

Summary:  The rural Philanthropy Days committee met with Administrator Knight and Town 

Clerk Ferguson to discuss the RPD reservations and plans for June 12-14
th

. Included in the 

packet are the large park event registration application for Board approval and additional 

documents and locations being used by RPD for informational purposes.   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Friends of the Paradise Theatre - Rural Philanthropy Days Special Event 

License 

Summary:  The non-profit group, Friends of the Paradise Theatre request a special event liquor 

license for Thursday, June 13, 2019.   

 

 

Notes: 

 

No issues noted from Chief of Police of Town Clerk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

125



126



127



128



129



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Contract Extension 

Summary:  Suggested extension to June 11
th

 Board meeting.  

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

130



 

Page 1 of 2 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

This SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

(this “Amendment”) is made and entered into this _____ day of April, 2019, by and between the 

Town of Paonia, a Colorado statutory town (the “Town”), and Kenneth D. Knight (the 

“Administrator”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. WHEREAS, the Town and the Administrator entered into a Professional Employment 

Agreement, dated January 12, 2017 (the “Employment Agreement”) (a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), wherein the Administrator became the Town 

Administrator for the Town; and  

 

B. WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement was set to expire on February 1, 2019; and  

 

C. WHEREAS, the Town and the Administrator entered into a First Amendment to the 

Professional Employment Agreement extending the term of the Employment Agreement 

with the Town Administrator to April 23, 2019 (the “First Amendment”); and  

 

D. WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for the Town and the Administrator are in the process 

of implementing goals and objectives for the Town Administrator, a process which the 

Board hopes to complete on or before June of 2019; and 

 

E. WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement and the First Amendment are in full force and 

effect, and the Town Administrator is an employee in good standing with the Town; and  

 

F. WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees will not have the opportunity to complete its 

evaluation of the Town Administrator prior to the expiration of the Employment 

Agreement and the First Amendment; and  

 

G. WHEREAS, the Town would like to extend the term of the Employment Agreement for 

an additional time period, to June 11, 2019, and the Town Administrator is willing to 

serve as Town Administrator during this time.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

agree as follows: 

 

Section 1.    Amendment to the Employment Agreement.  The term of the Employment 

Agreement shall be until June 11, 2019, subject to early termination as provided for in the 

Employment Agreement.   

 

Section 2.   Performance Evaluation.  The Town Board of Trustees shall undertake a 

Performance Evaluation in accordance with Section 10 of the Employment Agreement prior to 

131



 

Page 2 of 2 

determining if it is appropriate to offer the Town Administrator a new or a renewed employment 

agreement as Town Administrator.  

 

Section 3.   Binding Effect.  Except as amended in this Amendment the Employment 

Agreement shall remain in effect and be binding on the Town and the Town Administrator.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed, acknowledged, sealed and 

delivered this Amendment on the date first above written. 

 

    TOWN OF PAONIA 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

             Charles Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

By: ________________________________ 

    Corinne Ferguson Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

       TOWN ADMINISTRATOR  

 

       By:_________________________________ 

             Kenneth D. Knight, Town Administrator  

132



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

2019 Optional Coverage Program for Detainee Medical Coverage 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

133



134



135



136



137



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Ordinance 2019-TBD Clark Avenue Parking 

Summary:  The Board of Trustees directed staff to prepare a Clark Avenue parking ordinance, 

limiting Parking to the east-side of the 300 block of Clark Avenue.    

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

138



 

Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - TBD 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

PAONIA, COLORADO, ADDING CHAPTER 8, ARTICLE 3, SECTION  

40 TO THE TOWN OF PAONIA MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”), in the County of Delta and State of Colorado, is 

a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town has the power to regulate its streets and rights-of-way for the purposes of 

promoting the health, safety and the general welfare of the community; and    

 

WHEREAS, the Town has adopted certain parking regulations under Chapter 8, Section 3 of the 

Town of Paonia Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees, after discussing this matter with community members, 

property owners along Clark Avenue, and having it as an agenda item determines that it is in the 

best interest of the community and the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the 

Town to amend the Town Code to prohibit parking along the west side of the 300 block of Clark 

Avenue, from the intersection of Third Street to the dead-end of Clark Avenue by adding the 

following provision to the Municipal Code.    

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   

 

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Board of Trustees in support of the 

enactment of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  Addition to the Town Code.  

 

Sec. 8-3-40 shall be added to the Town Code as follows: 

 

(1) It shall be a violation of the Municipal Code to park along the west side of Clark 

Avenue, along the 300 Block, from Third Street to the dead-end of Clark Avenue. 

 

(2) A violation of this provision shall be cited in accordance with adopted Model Traffic 

Code. 

 

Section 3.  Severability.   

 

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions 

139



 

Page 2 of 2 

of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to 

this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  

 

Section 4.  Repeal of Prior Ordinances.  

 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

 

Section 5.  Ordinance Effect. 
 

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided, however, that the repeal of any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance 

or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not 

affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 

violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication.     

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of Trustees 

of the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the 23
rd

 day of April 2019. 
 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia, 

Colorado, this 14
th

 day of May, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
 

      By:________________________________ 

      CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

140



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

141



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

142



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

143



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

144



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

145



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 12, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

146


	Top
	2. ASF- Work Session - Goals and Objectives
	ASF- Work Session - Goals and Objectives.docx
	Admin Goals & Objectives List.pdf

	8. ASF- Consent Agenda
	ASF- Consent Agenda 4-23-19.docx
	West Elk License Renewal.pdf
	0409 minutes.docx

	15. ASF - Town Clerk CORA
	ASF- UB - Town Clerk Public Records Policy .docx
	Public Records Policy.pdf
	Attachment A - Public Records Request Form.pdf

	16. ASF- UB - Admin Goals & Objectives
	ASF- UB - Admin Goals &amp; Objectives.docx

	17. ASF - UB - County Road Annexation
	ASF - UB -  County Road Annexation.docx

	18. ASF - Gruenefeldt Hearing
	ASF - Gruenefeldt Hearing.docx
	Gruenefeldt Plan A Application_Redacted.pdf
	Gruenefeldt Plan B Application_Redacted.pdf
	Gruenefeldt Letter of Support_Redacted.pdf
	Gruenefeldt Planning Recommendation.docx

	19. ASF - Skeels Hearing
	ASF - Skeels Hearing.docx
	Skeels Application Packet_Redacted.pdf
	Skeels Letter of Support_Redacted.pdf
	Skeels Planning Recommendation.docx

	20. ASF - Bachran Hearing
	ASF - Bachran Hearing.docx
	Bachran Application Packet_Redacted.pdf
	Bachran Planning Recommendation.docx

	21. ASF- NB - RPD Park Use
	ASF- NB - RPD Park Use.docx
	RPD Large Park Event Applications.pdf

	22. ASF- NB - RPD SEP
	ASF- NB - RPD SEP.docx
	FOTP - RPD SEP License.pdf

	23. ASF- NB - Town Administrator Contract Extension
	ASF- NB - Town Administrator Contract Extension.docx
	Contract Extension_2.docx

	24. ASF- NB - CIRSA Optional Coverage
	ASF- NB - CIRSA Optional Coverage.docx
	CIRSA Coverage.pdf

	25. ASF- NB - Ordinance 2019-TBD Clark Avenue Parking
	ASF- NB - Ordinance 2019-TBD Clark Avenue Parking.docx
	2019-TBD Clark Avenue Parking.docx

	Bottom

